
  

AGENDA 
STAYTON CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

Monday, March 18, 2013 
Stayton Community Center 

400 W. Virginia Street 
Stayton, Oregon  97383 

 
6:00 p.m. Executive Session (Community Center Meeting Room) to discuss 

Real Estate Transactions pursuant to ORS 192.660.1(2)(e). 
7:00 p.m. Regular Meeting (Community Center – North End) 

 
CALL TO ORDER   7:00 PM   Mayor Vigil 
 
FLAG SALUTE 
 
ROLL CALL/STAFF INTRODUCTIONS 
 
PRESENTATIONS/COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC 
 
Request for Recognition:  If you wish to address the Council, please fill out a green “Request for 
Recognition” form.  Forms are on the table at the back of the room. 
Recommended time for presentation is 10 minutes. 
Recommended time for comments from the public is 3 minutes. 
 
ANNOUNCEMENTS – PLEASE READ CAREFULLY 
Items not on the agenda but relevant to City business may be discussed at this meeting. Citizens are encouraged to 
attend all meetings of the City Council to insure that they stay informed. Agenda items may be moved forward if a 
Public Hearing is scheduled. 

 
a. Additions to the agenda 
b. Declaration of Ex Parte Contacts, Conflict of Interest, Bias, etc.  
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
a. March 4, 2013 City Council Meeting Minutes 
 
Purpose of the Consent Agenda: 
In order to make more efficient use of meeting time, resolutions, minutes, bills, and other items which are routine in 
nature and for which no debate is anticipated, shall be placed on the Consent Agenda.  Any item placed on the 
Consent Agenda may be removed at the request of any council member prior to the time a vote is taken.  All 
remaining items of the Consent Agenda are then disposed of in a single motion to adopt the Consent Agenda.  This 
motion is not debatable.  The Recorder to the Council will then poll the council members individually by a roll call 
vote.  If there are any dissenting votes, each item on the consent Agenda is then voted on individually by roll call 
vote.  Copies of the Council packets include more detailed staff reports, letters, resolutions, and other supporting 
materials.  A citizen wishing to review these materials may do so at Stayton City Hall, 362 N. Third Avenue, Stayton, 
or the Stayton Public Library, 515 N. First Avenue, Stayton. 
 
 

 
Stayton City Council Agenda  Page 1 of 4 
March 18, 2013 



  

The meeting location is accessible to persons with disabilities. A request for an interpreter for the 
hearing impaired or for other accommodations for persons with disabilities should be made at least 48 
hours prior to the meeting. If you require special accommodations, please contact Alissa Angelo, 
Deputy City Recorder at (503) 769-3425. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING – None 
 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
Ordinance No. 949, Comprehensive Plan       Action 
a. Staff Report – Dan Fleishman 
b. Council Deliberation 
c. Council Decision 
 
Ordinance No. 953, Natural Resource Overlay District     Action 
a. Staff Report – Dan Fleishman 
b. Council Deliberation 
c. Council Decision 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
Resolution No. 896, Oregon Parks and Recreation Grant Application for  Action 
Pioneer Park 
a. Staff Report – David Kinney 
b. Council Deliberation 
c. Council Decision 
 
Ordinance No. 954, Transportation Maintenance Fee     Action 
a. Staff Report – David Kinney 
b. Council Deliberation 
c. Council Decision 
 
STAFF/COMMISSION REPORTS 
Finance Director’s Report – Christine Shaffer     Informational 
a. February 2013 Monthly Finance Department Report 

 
Police Chief’s Report – Rich Sebens      Informational 
a. February 2013 Statistical Report  
b. K9 Officer Update 
 
Public Works Director’s Report – Dave Kinney     Informational 
a. February 2013 Operating Report 
b. Public Works Update 
 
Pool Manager’s Report        Informational 
a. February 2013 Monthly Operating Report 

 
Library Director’s Report – Louise Meyers     Informational 
a. February 2013 Activities/Statistics 

 
Stayton City Council Agenda  Page 2 of 4 
March 18, 2013 



  

PRESENTATIONS/COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC 
Recommended time for presentations is 10 minutes. 
Recommended time for comments from the public is 3 minutes. 
 
BUSINESS FROM THE CITY ADMINISTRATOR 
 
 
 
 
 
BUSINESS FROM THE MAYOR         
a. Appointment of Chad Niegel to the Budget Committee 
 
b. Reappointments to the Budget Committee 

• Tadd Humphreys 
• Scott West 

 
 
BUSINESS FROM THE COUNCIL 
 
 
 
 
 
FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 
a. Adoption of City Council Goals 
 
 
ADJOURN 

 
Stayton City Council Agenda  Page 3 of 4 
March 18, 2013 



  

CALENDAR OF EVENTS 

MARCH 2013
Monday March 18 City Council 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 

Wednesday March 20 Library Board 6:00 p.m. E.G. Siegmund Meeting Room 
Monday March 25 Planning Commission – CANCELLED 

APRIL 2013
Monday April 1 City Council 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 
Tuesday April 2 Parks & Recreation Board 7:00 p.m. E.G. Siegmund Meeting Room 
Tuesday April 9 Commissioner’s Breakfast 7:30 a.m. Covered Bridge Café 
Friday  April 12 Community Leaders Meeting 7:30 a.m. Covered Bridge Café 

Monday April 15 City Council 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 
Wednesday April 17 Library Board 6:00 p.m. E.G. Siegmund Meeting Room 

Monday April 29 Planning Commission 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 

MAY 2013
Monday May 6 City Council 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 
Tuesday May 7 Parks & Recreation Board 7:00 p.m. E.G. Siegmund Meeting Room 
Tuesday May 7 Budget Committee 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 
Thursday May 9 Budget Committee 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 

Friday  May 10 Community Leaders Meeting 7:30 a.m. Covered Bridge Café 
Monday May 13 Budget Committee 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 
Tuesday May 14 Commissioner’s Breakfast 7:30 a.m. Covered Bridge Café 

Wednesday May 15 Library Board 6:00 p.m. E.G. Siegmund Meeting Room 
Monday May 20 City Council 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 
Tuesday May 28 Planning Commission 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 

 

 
Stayton City Council Agenda  Page 4 of 4 
March 18, 2013 



 
 

  
Stayton City Council Meeting Minutes  Page 1 of 9 
March 4, 2013 

STAYTON CITY COUNCIL 
MEETING MINUTES 

March 4, 2013 
 
CALL TO ORDER 7:00 p.m. Mayor Vigil 

 
FLAG SALUTE 
 
ROLL CALL 

Mayor Scott Vigil Councilor Jennifer Niegel 
Councilor Henry Porter Councilor Catherine Hemshorn 
Councilor Brian Quigley Councilor Emily Gooch 
 

STAFF 
Don Eubank, City Administrator 
Christine Shaffer, Finance Director 
Rich Sebens, Police Chief 
Dan Fleishman, Director of Planning and Development 
Louise Meyers, Library Director, excused 
David Kinney, Public Works Director 
Rebekah Meeks, excused 
David A. Rhoten, City Attorney, excused 
Wallace Lien, City Land Use Attorney 
Alissa Angelo, Deputy City Recorder 

 
PRESENTATIONS/COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC 
a. Tass Morrison, President of the Stayton Public Library Foundation: Ms. Morrison 

presented the City with a $25,000 contribution to supplement operations at the Library. She 
also congratulated Councilor Jennifer Niegel for being named Stayton’s First Citizen. 

 
b. Larry Emery, 7671 Pudding Creek Drive, SE, Salem: Mr. Emery expressed his concerns 

with the Natural Resource Overlay District (NROD). He stated it was his understanding that 
at the last meeting the Council chose to remove the NROD from the Comprehensive Plan and 
create a separate ordinance for it. He has no issue with this; however, he feels the NROD is 
too wide. Mr. Emery is in support of the NROD being reduced from 50 feet to 25 feet, and 
would like it changed uniformly for all areas within the Urban Growth Boundary (UGB). He 
encouraged the Council to make it 25 feet everywhere.  

 
c. Steve Frank, 1515 E. Jefferson Street: Mr. Frank spoke in opposition of the increase of 

retail store square footage. He also didn’t agree with there being no public input on this 
change. He also spoke against changing the NROD, which he feels should remain at 50 feet. 
Finally he encouraged the Council to take notice of land issues which were proposed during 
the legislative session and to participate in the public meetings offered.   

 
ANNOUNCEMENTS 
a. Additions to the Agenda: Mayor Vigil stated that Chief Sebens report for the PacifiCorp 

Grant and the staff report from Public Works on a large vehicle purchase will be moved to 
the beginning of the meeting, following the Consent Agenda.  



 
 

  
Stayton City Council Meeting Minutes  Page 2 of 9 
March 4, 2013 

 
b. Declaration of Ex Parte Contacts, Conflict of Interest, Bias, etc.: None. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
a. February 19, 2013 City Council Meeting Minutes: Councilor Niegel requested the minutes 

be pulled from the Consent Agenda. 
 
b. 2013 OLCC Annual Liquor License Renewals 

 
MOTION: From Councilor Quigley, seconded by Councilor Gooch, to adopt part “b” of 

the Consent Agenda. Motion passed 5:0. 
 
Council Discussion regarding the February 19, 2013 City Council minutes: Councilor Niegel 
stated the motion which mentions the increase in allowable square footage for retail stores was 
missing. After some discussion, it was determined that the motion was in the minutes at the top 
of page 4.  
 

MOTION:  From Councilor Hemshorn, seconded by Councilor Niegel, to adopt the 
February 19, 2013 City Council meeting minutes. Motion passed 5:0.  

 
PUBLIC HEARING – None 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
PacifiCorp Foundation Grant 
a. Staff Report: Chief Sebens briefly reviewed the staff report included in the Council packet. 
 
b. Council Deliberation: Councilor Porter asked how close the fundraising is to reaching the 

goal of obtaining a K9. Chief Sebens stated they are approximately $5,000 away from their 
goal. 

 
c. Council Decision:  
 

MOTION: From Councilor Gooch, seconded by Councilor Niegel, to authorize the 
Chief of Police to submit a grant application to the PacifiCorp Foundation 
for a police K-9. Motion passed 5:0  

 
Large Vehicle Purchase Recommendation 
a. Staff Report: Ms. Kuiken briefly reviewed the staff report included in the packet and gave a 

presentation about the vehicles needing replacement. The public works staff has proposed a 
schedule to replace the street sweeper, sewer cleaning truck and biosolids truck over the next 
two fiscal years. 

 
b. Council Deliberation: Councilor Hemshorn asked if the new sweeper would have the same 

seven-year life span the current sweeper has. Frank Spieler from Enviro-Clean Equipment, 
Inc. spoke about the average lifespan of street sweepers, pointing out seven years of use is 
normal for the size and use of Stayton. The City of Salem rotates their sweepers on a four 
year rotation. The engines in this model are more fuel efficient and overall better at 
“sweeping”.  



 
 

  
Stayton City Council Meeting Minutes  Page 3 of 9 
March 4, 2013 

 
Mayor Vigil asked about other brands of sweepers on the market. Mr. Spieler listed other 
brands available and how long the model quoted for the City had been in operation. Mayor 
Vigil wanted to be sure the City was purchasing a tried and true product. 
 
Councilor Quigley asked if the $167,000 cost included a credit for our trade-in. Staff stated 
yes.  
 
There was discussion as to what happens to an old sweeper that is traded in. Mr. Spieler 
stated they are taken in and rebuilt, which will cost approximately $40,000 to $50,000. This 
will extend the life approximately one to two years at the level of use the City is currently 
doing.  

 
Mr. Kinney pointed out that transfers are done each year to the Vehicle Replacement Fund 
based off the Vehicle Replacement Schedule.  

 
Mayor Vigil asked if it was possible to replace the biosolids truck with a trailer pulled by a 
truck we already have. Ms. Kuiken explained that prior to the Wastewater Treatment Plant 
expansion, our NPDES permit required a specific type of truck for hauling biosolids. At this 
point in time, the future need is unknown. This is why staff is recommending keeping the 
current truck and evaluating need over the next year. It’s possible a trailer would work or the 
hauling could potentially be contracted out, but until the first year following the expansion is 
completed it’s hard to know for sure.  

 
Councilor Porter asked about any current issues with the sweeper. Mr. Bradley spoke about 
mechanical issues that came up during the leaf season last fall.  

 
c. Council Decision:  
 

MOTION: From Councilor Niegel, seconded by Councilor Hemshorn, to award the 
replacement of the street sweeper to Atlantic Machinery, Inc. at the total 
cost of $167,800. Motion passed 5:0.  

 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
Resolution No. 895, City of Stayton Personnel Manual 
a. Staff Report:  Ms. Angelo briefly reviewed the staff report included in the Council packet. 

She pointed out one minor update to the Personnel Manual regarding Cell Phone Safety 
which did not affect the Resolution itself. The change allows Police Officers to use their 
phones during emergencies.  

 
b. Council Deliberation: None. 
 
c. Council Decision: 
 

MOTION: From Councilor Quigley, seconded by Councilor Gooch to adopt 
Resolution No. 895. Motion passed 5:0. 

 



 
 

  
Stayton City Council Meeting Minutes  Page 4 of 9 
March 4, 2013 

Ordinance No. 949, Comprehensive Plan 
a. Staff Report: Mr. Fleishman requested the City Council reopen the record due to his staff 

report containing information that was not previously on the record. Secondly, earlier in the 
evening there were public comments made during the presentation period which otherwise 
cannot be considered unless the record is reopened.  

 
MOTION: From Councilor Niegel, seconded by Councilor Quigley, to reopen record 

for Ordinance No. 949. Motion passed 5:0. 
 

Mr. Fleishman reviewed his staff report and the changes made to draft Ordinance No. 949 
since the February 19, 2013 meeting. He spoke about the documents submitted by the 
Santiam Water Control District (SWCD) prior to the record being closed at the last meeting. 

 
In adopting Ordinance No. 949 this evening, it does not make any change to the Natural 
Resource Overlay District (NROD) but will make the other changes such as the shopping 
center square footage. 

 
b. Council Deliberation: Councilor Niegel asked if public notice should have been provided 

regarding the change in the size of retail shopping centers and store sizes. Mr. Fleishman 
stated in his opinion no, as this is part of the draft Comprehensive Plan and it is not necessary 
to announce all specific changes being made in the document.  

 
Mayor Vigil feels by keeping the size restrictions on retail shopping centers and stores within 
the Comprehensive Plan still gives the City control over the size allowed. If it were to be 
removed, then there would be an issue.  
 
Councilor Hemshorn stated in the past former Mayor Gerry Aboud had indicated that when 
the original size limitations were chosen, they weren’t set in stone, and the City Council was 
free to make changes as needed. She feels it’s important to protect our existing businesses 
and allow for growth.  
 
Mayor Vigil asked if the change regarding pollution in industrial areas had been made to the 
draft Comprehensive Plan. Mr. Fleishman stated no change had been made to page 88, Policy 
EC-5. Councilor Gooch referenced her draft Comprehensive Plan document and according to 
her notes, it indicated that Policy EC-5 was amended to state “It is the Policy of City to 
promote the development of the industrial park area.” Mr. Fleishman asked the Council if 
they make a motion to approve the first consideration of Ordinance No. 949 this evening, to 
include this change in the motion.  

 
Councilor Quigley clarified that as of right now, the Comprehensive Plan will make no 
changes to the NROD. Mr. Fleishman stated as currently drafted, Ordinance No. 949 
removes any changes made to the NROD and leaves the existing language in place. 
Ordinance No. 953 is written to adopt the changes to the NROD and place them in the 
Comprehensive Plan. 
 



 
 

  
Stayton City Council Meeting Minutes  Page 5 of 9 
March 4, 2013 

The comments made by the public at the beginning of the meeting regarding the draft 
Comprehensive Plan are now considered part of the record. 
 
Councilor Quigley stated at the last meeting Mr. Fleishman was asked to make a 
modification to the Plan, and at the time Mr. Fleishman stated this item had already been 
omitted. Councilor Quigley asked for further information on this as he couldn’t recall the 
context of this omission. Mr. Fleishman explained the Planning Commission voted late last 
summer to include minimum density standards in the medium and low density districts. At 
that time, he forgot to put this in the draft Plan even though it was included in the draft 
Ordinance. Therefore, when the Council requested its removal from the Plan he did not have 
to do so because it was never in the Plan to begin with and Ordinance No. 949 was updated 
to remove the code amendments that would have addressed this policy.  
 
Councilor Quigley stated in regard to Mr. Frank’s concern about the reduction of the NROD, 
is it correct that this decision came at the recommendation of the Comprehensive Plan 
Committee. Mr. Fleishman stated yes.   
 
Councilor Gooch asked for clarification on Policy LU-4 (page 97) of the Comprehensive 
Plan. Mr. Fleishman clarified this section of the Comprehensive Plan. 
 
Councilor Porter asked if approved tonight, would Ordinance No. 949 return to the Council 
with amendments at the next Council meeting. Mr. Fleishman stated yes, this will only be the 
first consideration of the Ordinance and revised version will be brought to the Council at the 
next meeting.  
 
Mayor Vigil asked if there are any further comments from the public.  
 
Mr. Emery stated it was his understanding the NROD was being completely removed from 
the Comprehensive Plan. Mr. Fleishman clarified that it was not; only the changes to the 
NROD are being removed.  
 
Councilor Quigley spoke about the increase in square footage for retail shopping centers and 
stores. He inquired as to how the square footage reaching maximum for the shopping center 
where McDonald’s is was missed. Mr. Fleishman stated the Planning Commission relies on 
staff and he didn’t realize the shopping centers size was even near the limit until the owners 
of the Subway came in a year later for a pre-application meeting. At that time, he asked what 
the current size of the shopping center was and then discovered it was at the maximum 
square footage. Councilor Quigley stated in his opinion this change is being done for the 
benefit of the community, not just one particular situation.  
 
Mayor Vigil closed record at 8:03 p.m. 

 
 
 
 
  



 
 

  
Stayton City Council Meeting Minutes  Page 6 of 9 
March 4, 2013 

c. Council Decision:  
 

MOTION: From Councilor Gooch, seconded by Councilor Niegel, to adopt Ordinance 
No. 949 as amended reflecting changes relating to non-polluting industries.  

 
Council Discussion 
 
Councilor Porter clarified that this is only the first consideration of the Ordinance. Mayor 
Vigil stated yes.  
 
Councilor Quigley with all the changes made to the Ordinance this evening, he’d prefer to 
have more time to review this before approving.  
 
UPON ROLL CALL VOTE, THE MOTION PASSED 3:2 (Porter, Quigley) 

 
NEW BUSINESS 
Ordinance No. 953, Natural Resource Overlay District 
a. Staff Report: Mr. Fleishman stated Ordinance No. 953 shouldn’t be enacted until Ordinance 

No. 949 is fully adopted. If any motion is made this evening, it should be only for the first 
consideration. He reviewed his staff report included in the Council packet which responds to 
the comments submitted at the last meeting by the Santiam Water Control District (SWCD).  

 
Mayor Vigil asked if this new ordinance requires separate public hearing. Mr. Fleishman 
stated he didn’t believe so because the content of the ordinance was originally part of 
Comprehensive Plan public hearing. 

 
Mayor Vigil opened the public record for Ordinance No. 953 at 8:12 p.m. 

 
b. Council Deliberation: Councilor Porter asked how long the public record would remain 

open. Mayor Vigil stated it would remain open until the next Council meeting.  
 
Councilor Niegel asked how a width was chosen for the NROD. Mr. Fleishman spoke about 
the wide variety of width recommendations out there and that there is no magic number 
which is correct. He continued that when a certain number is chosen, it’s usually “what feels 
right” and what might work. Unfortunately there is no right answer to what the correct width 
should be in this situation. 

 
Councilor Quigley stated he struggles with the widths being all over the place and feels it 
should be applied equally to everyone. He would like to see Council review the widths 
further. 

 
c. Council Decision: None.  

 
Moose Lodge Rent Reduction Request 
a. Staff Report: Ms. Shaffer reviewed the staff report included in the Council packet regarding 

the rent reduction request from the Moose. 
 



 
 

  
Stayton City Council Meeting Minutes  Page 7 of 9 
March 4, 2013 

b. Council Deliberation: Mayor Vigil asked when the Moose began renting the building. Ms. 
Shaffer stated they began occupying the building in 2007, and gave a brief history of their 
use of the building. Mayor Vigil is concerned about building itself, if the City is collecting 
less rent, how will needs of the facility addressed such as roof replacement. Ms. Shaffer 
explained that as part of their lease agreement the Moose are in charge of maintaining 
building to a certain standard while they are occupying it.  

 
The City purchased the building because it was a proposed site for a future City Hall 
building. However, those plans never moved forward and it was decided to rent the building 
out so that it did not remain empty.  
 
Councilor Quigley asked when the facility condition was last reviewed. City Engineering 
Technician Mike Brash did a walk through approximately 1½ to 2 years ago. At that time an 
issue with the heater was discovered and repaired. The City and the Moose partnered on the 
repair costs.  
 
Councilor Hemshorn asked if the Moose are paying utility expenses on building as well. Ms. 
Shaffer stated yes.  

 
Councilor Gooch asked if there is a monthly mortgage payment on the building. Ms. Shaffer 
stated there was not, the City had paid cash for the building. 

 
Councilor Quigley felt a two year extension may be a stretch.  

 
Councilor Gooch originally was opposed to the reduction. However, the Moose are a non-
profit and do benefit the community and she doesn’t want to see a vacant building. She 
suggested revisiting this in one year, rather than two years.  

 
Councilor Quigley asked if the City done a rent reduction for any other renters. Ms. Shaffer 
stated the Food Bank operated out of City owned space for several years at no cost, and the 
Historical Society rents the Museum building for $2 a month. Also, the City provides office 
space for the peer court and Library Foundation.  
 
Councilor Quigley wondered if this is setting a precedent, if the Star Cinema operators were 
to now come ask for a rent reduction. Ms. Shaffer stated the difference with the theater is 
they are “for profit.” While it is a City-owned building, it is still subsidized if you look at the 
price per square footage. Currently they are paying approximately $741 per month and the 
only increase to their rent is an annual CPI adjustment.  
 
Councilor Porter felt the reduction request should be revisited in a year.  

 
c. Council Decision:  
 

MOTION: From Councilor Porter, seconded by Councilor Niegel to grant the Moose 
Lodge’s request for a rent reduction for one year, forgive their missed rent for 
the first two months of 2013, and revisit the reduction in one year. Motion 
passed 5:0.  



 
 

  
Stayton City Council Meeting Minutes  Page 8 of 9 
March 4, 2013 

STAFF / COMMISSION REPORTS 
Planning and Development Report – Dan Fleishman 
a. Land Use Training – March 11, 2013: Mr. Fleishman invited the City Council to Land Use 

Training on March 11, 2013 at 7:00 p.m. at the Stayton Community Center.  
 

Councilor Quigley asked if the Council needs to be aware of any land use issues as 
mentioned by Mr. Frank at the beginning of the meeting. Mr. Fleishman stated none that he 
is aware of at this time. The League of Oregon Cities flags any potential issues and notifies 
cities of them. At this point, there does not seem to be any of importance relating to the City 
of Stayton.  

 
PRESENTATIONS/COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC 
a. Larry Emery, 7671 Pudding Creek Drive, SE, Salem: Mr. Emery encouraged the City 

Council to consider holding a work session regarding the NROD. He feels it needs a lot of 
work and many little things within it need to be looked at.  
 

BUSINESS FROM THE CITY ADMINISTRATOR 
Mr. Eubank reminded the Council and those in attendance of the upcoming Community Leaders 
meeting on Friday, March 8th and the Commissioners Breakfast on Tuesday, March 12th. Both 
are held at 7:30 a.m. at the Covered Bridge Café.   
 
BUSINESS FROM THE MAYOR – None 
 
BUSINESS FROM THE COUNCIL 
Councilor Quigley asked if there is an update on the Budget Committee and appointments to the 
Committee. Mayor Vigil stated he hopes to be making reappointments at the next meeting and 
welcomed suggestions of potential members.  
 
Councilor Gooch invited everyone to stop by the concession stand at the Stayton-Sublimity 
Chamber of Commerce Discover Local Business Expo. The concession stand will be a fundraiser 
for the Stayton Police K9.  
 
FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 
 
 
ADJOURN 
There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 8:37 p.m. 
 
 



 
 

  
Stayton City Council Meeting Minutes  Page 9 of 9 
March 4, 2013 

APPROVED BY THE STAYTON CITY COUNCIL THIS 18TH DAY OF MARCH 2013, BY 
A ____ VOTE OF THE STAYTON CITY COUNCIL.  
 

CITY OF STAYTON 
 
 
Date:    By:  

A. Scott Vigil, Mayor 
 
Date:    Attest:  

 Don Eubank, City Administrator 
       
Date:    Transcribed by:  
 Alissa Angelo, Deputy City Recorder 
 



Land Use File 06-06/12 

2012 Comprehensive Plan Update 

City Council Staff Report 

Page 1 of 2 

 

City of Stayton 
 

 

Planning and Development Department 
 

Mailing address:  362 N. Third Avenue·  Stayton, OR 97383 

Office location: 311 N. Third Avenue 

Phone:  (503) 769-2998  ·  FAX: (503) 767-2134 

Email:  dfleishman@ci.stayton.or.us 

www.staytonoregon.gov 

 

M E M O R A N D U M 

 

 TO: Mayor Scott Vigil and City Council Members 

 FROM: Dan Fleishman, Planning and Development Director 

 DATE: March 18, 2013 

 SUBJECT: Comprehensive Plan Update, Enactment of Ordinance 949 

 120 DAYS ENDS:  not applicable 

 

 

ISSUE 

The issue before the City Council is approval of the second consideration of Ordinance 949 to adopt 

the draft Update of the Stayton Comprehensive Plan, a new Official Zoning Map, and a number of 

legislative text amendments to the Land Use and Development Code. 

BACKGROUND 

The City Council held a public hearing on October 15.  At the close of the hearing, the City Council 

kept the record open for written submissions and began its review of the plan and deliberations.  The 

Council culminated its review of the Plan, Map and Code amendments at its February 19 meeting, 

directing staff to make a number of changes and to remove changes to the Natural Resources Overlay 

District from the ordinance.  Changes to the Natural Resources Overlay District are presented to the 

City Council in Ordinance 953 and are addressed in a separate staff report.  

There have been two changes to Ordinance 949 since its review by the City Council on March 4: 

• Section 1, Part 12 has been added, to delete reference to “non-polluting industries with a 

low energy demand.” 

• The date of adoption has been changed from March 4 to March 18. 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

Staff recommends the City Council enact Ordinance 949 as amended. 



Land Use File 06-06/12 

2012 Comprehensive Plan Update 

City Council Staff Report 

Page 2 of 2 

OPTIONS AND MOTIONS 

The City Council has the following options from which to choose.  Staff recommends the first option. 

1. Adopt the revised draft Ordinance as presented. 

I move the City Council approve the second consideration of the revised Ordinance 949 as 

presented. 

2. Adopt the revised draft Ordinance with changes. 

I move the City Council approve the second consideration of Ordinance 949, requesting staff make 

the following changes to the draft Comprehensive Plan, [Official Zoning Map] or [text 

amendments to Title17] (list changes) prior to its presentation to the Mayor for signature. 

3. Continue to deliberate on the Comprehensive Plan, Official Zoning Map, and text 

amendments to Title 17. 

I move that the City Council continue its deliberations on Ordinance 949 until April 1, 2013 (or 

some other date). 



 

Ordinance 949, Adopting 2012 Comprehensive Plan, Official Zoning Map, and Title 17 Amendments Page 1 

ORDINANCE NO. 949 

 

AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING THE STAYTON COMPREHENSIVE 

PLAN UPDATE, THE APRIL 1, 2013 OFFICIAL ZONING MAP, AND 

AMENDING STAYTON MUNICIPAL CODE (SMC) TITLE 17 
 

WHEREAS, Oregon statutes and administrative rules require every municipality to enact a 

Comprehensive Plan and land use regulations in conformance with Statewide Planning Goals and 

Guidelines, and coordinated with other affected units of government;  

WHEREAS, the Stayton Comprehensive Plan was adopted in 1979, and has undergone periodic 

review and amendment, but not been thoroughly updated since adoption; 

WHEREAS, in April 2010, the Stayton City Council appointed a 13-member committee to review 

and update the Comprehensive Plan.  That Committee met on a monthly basis.  Upon completing a 

draft of an updated Comprehensive Plan, the Committee held a public informational session on April 

25, 2012 and made changes to the draft plan and the draft official zoning map in response to comments 

received at the informational session; 

WHEREAS, drafts of each chapter of the Plan were sent to the Department of Land Conservation 

and Development and to Marion County Planning Division as each chapter was written.  Review 

comments from Marion County were incorporated as appropriate; 

WHEREAS, the draft Comprehensive Plan was sent to the Oregon Department of Land 

Conservation and Development which sent review comments and suggestions on July 13, 2012;  

WHEREAS, the Stayton Planning Commission held a public hearing on August 27 and 

September 24, 2012 and made changes to the draft plan and the draft amendments to the Stayton 

Municipal Code in response to the comments received at the public hearing and in response to the 

comments and suggestions received from the Oregon Department of Land Conservation and 

Development; 

WHEREAS, the Stayton City Council held a public hearing on October 15, 2012; 

WHEREAS, following the public hearing the Stayton City Council made the following findings: 

1. The proposed comprehensive plan contains chapters on demographics, economics, 

transportation, public facilities and services, housing, land use, energy, and a fiscal 

analysis of the City.  In each chapter, other than the chapter on demographics, there is an 

updated inventory and analysis, the relative Statewide Planning Goals, and one or more 

local goals.  For each local goal there are one or more policies for achieving the local goal.  

For each policy there are one or more action steps to be taken to implement the policy. 

2. Stayton’s population has grown from 5,011 in 1990 to 7,644 in 2010.  After decades of 

growth of more than 30%, Stayton’s population grew only 12% between 2000 and 2010, 

the slowest since 1910-1920. 

3. In 2010 Marion County adopted “coordinated population projections” for the County and 

each of the cities within the County.  The Marion County projections included a low 

growth, medium growth and high growth projection for each jurisdiction.  The medium 

growth projected 2030 population for Stayton is 11,359. 

4. The number of occupied housing units in the City has grown from 1,862 in 1990 to 2,882 

in 2010.  42% of the occupied housing units are renter-occupied.  381 housing units were 

added between 2000 and 2010, 95% of which were single family detached units.  In order 



 

Ordinance 949, Adopting 2012 Comprehensive Plan, Official Zoning Map, and Title 17 Amendments Page 2 

to accommodate the projected 2030 population, an additional 1,281 housing units will be 

needed. 

5. Elevations with the urban growth area range from a low of 400 to a high of 665 feet.  

There are small areas on the east side of the City and urban growth area with slopes 

steeper than 20%. 

6. The Plan identifies 13 buildings and sites as historic resources. 

7. There is no land in Stayton identified as terrestrial wildlife habitat.  The North Santiam 

River, Salem Ditch and Stayton Power Canal have been identified as fisheries habitat, 

including habitat for endangered species.  Water quality in the North Santiam River is 

excellent but is impaired by high temperatures during the summer. 

8. Within the UGB there are 358 acres of open space land, including city parks, school 

property and the golf course. 

9. Stayton has historically had a resident unemployment rate that is 50% higher than 

neighboring cities, Marion County or the State. 

10. There are 138 acres of buildable land zoned residential within the City limits.  There are 

21 acres of buildable land zoned commercial or downtown mixed use within the City 

limits.  There are 142 acres of buildable land zoned industrial in the City limits. 

11. Marion County establishes a target for residential density of between 5 and 6 units per 

gross acre of land zoned residential for cities of Stayton’s size.  Looking at land within the 

City limits zoned residential, the City currently has a residential density of 3.1 units per 

acre 

12. In subdivisions recorded since 2000, the residential density has been 2.8 units per acre.  If 

residential development continues at this density, the City will need to annex 320 acres of 

land during the next 20 years. 

13. The City of Stayton currently has a “one map” system in which the Comprehensive Plan 

Map and Official Zoning Map show identical detail.  The 2012 Comprehensive Plan 

proposes establishing a “two map” system in which the Comprehensive Plan Map shows 

broad categories of land use: residential, commercial, industrial, downtown, and public. 

14. A new Official Zoning Map is proposed to be adopted.  The new map makes 

approximately 30 zoning changes, mostly to address either existing non-conforming uses 

or parcels split by a zoning boundary.  The Zone Map amendments result in a net loss of 

16.4 acres of land zoned residential, no change in the land zoned commercially, a net gain 

of 7.3 acres of land zoned industrially, and a net gain of 11 acres of land zoned public; 

15. The owner of the A.D Gardner House, 633 N 3rd Ave objected to the property being 

included on the City’s inventory of historic resources. 

WHEREAS, based on the above findings, the Stayton City Council concludes the 2012 City of 

Stayton Comprehensive Plan meets the Statewide Planning Goals, Guidelines and Administrative 

Rules; 

WHEREAS, based on the above findings, the Stayton City Council concludes that the October 1, 

2012 Official Zoning Map is in compliance with the Comprehensive Plan Map; and 

WHEREAS, based on the above findings the Stayton City Council concludes that the proposed 

text amendments to Title 17, described below, implement the 2012 City of Stayton Comprehensive 

Plan. 



 

Ordinance 949, Adopting 2012 Comprehensive Plan, Official Zoning Map, and Title 17 Amendments Page 3 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Stayton City Council does ordain as follows: 

Section 1.  The October 15, 2012 Draft of the City of Stayton Comprehensive Plan, attached as Exhibit 

A and made a part hereof, is hereby adopted with the following amendments: 

Additions are underlined, Deletions are crossed out 

Part 1.  In Chapter 1, page 1, in the recitation of goals, change Goal 5 as 

follows: 

5. Habitat for rare and endangered fish species Fisheries habitat will be maintained and 

improved. 

Part 2.  In Chapter 3, page 15, amend the third paragraph under Surface 

Water Bodies as follows: 

Additionally, the Salem Ditch and Stayton Power Canal (West Stayton irrigation ditch) 

divert water from the North Santiam River and pass through the southern part of Stayton.  

Salem Ditch forms part of the western edge of the UGB just before its confluence with Mill 

Creek.  The Salem Ditch and the Santiam Power Canal were originally constructed for water 

power.  The ditches were used for a variety of industrial uses, for wastewater disposal and flood 

control. but Both ditches are now owned and operated by the Santiam Water Control District as 

conveyances of irrigation water, and which has ongoing operational rights and responsibilities.  

The two canals also receive the majority of the City’s storm water. 

Part 3.  In Chapter 3, page 38, amend the third Goal as follows: 

GOAL FISHERIES HABITAT FOR RARE AND ENDANGERED FISH SPECIES WILL 

BE MAINTAINED AND IMPROVED 

Part 4.  In Chapter 3, page 38, amend the first Action under Policy NR-4 as 

follows: 

ACTION The City will continue to apply regulations to apply standards for maintenance of 

vegetation and limiting uses within 100 feet of the North Santiam River, and Mill 

Creek and that portion of Salem Ditch north of Shaff Road. 

Part 5.  In Chapter 3, page 38, amend the second Action under Policy NR-4 

as follows: 

ACTION The City will continue to apply regulations to apply standards for maintenance of 

vegetation and limiting uses within 25 50 feet of the Salem Ditch, south of Shaff 

Road, and the Stayton Ditch. 

Part 6.  In Chapter 4, page 40, amend the first paragraph under Streets and 

Highways as follows: 

Automotive transport is and will continue to be the dominant form of moving people and goods to, 

through, and within the City of Stayton.  The TSP contains a complete inventory of the street and 

highway system, an analysis of the needed improvements, and a recommended capital improvements 

plan.  Based on the analysis of projected traffic in 2025, the TSP calls for eight significantvarious 

changes to the existing street and highway system, two of which had been completed by 2010.  These 

improvements are 

1.Rebuild the Highway 22-Cascade Highway interchange (completed 2010) 

2.Widen Cascade Highway between Highway 22 and Regis Street to 5 lanes 

3.Widen Golf Club Road between Highway 22 and Shaff Road to 5 lanes 



 

Ordinance 949, Adopting 2012 Comprehensive Plan, Official Zoning Map, and Title 17 Amendments Page 4 

4.Construct four roundabouts at Washington St, 6
th

 Ave, Jefferson St, 10
th

 Ave, and Santiam St 

5.Signalize east bound ramp onto Highway 22 at Golf Club Road 

6.Signalize intersection of Golf Club Road and Mill Creek Road 

7.Signalize the Cascade Highway/Whitney St intersection with left turn lanes (completed 2008) 

8.Construct roundabout at corner of Wilco Rd, Washington St, and Ida St. 

Part 7.  In Chapter 4, page 45, delete the third Action under Policy T-7. 

Part 8.  In Chapter 4, page 47, amend the fourth Action under Policy T-14 

to read as follows: 

ACTION The City will require striped bicycle lanes on all new and improved collector streets. 

Part 9.  In Chapter 6, page 76 delete the second Action under Policy HO-1. 

Part 10. In Chapter 7, page 87 amend the first Action under Policy EC-3 to 

read as follows: 

ACTION The City shall continue toincrease the limit on the size of shopping center 

malls to 80,000100,000 square feet. 

Part 11. In Chapter 7, page 87 amend the second Action under Policy EC-3 to 

read as follows: 

ACTION The City shall continue toincrease the limit on the size of retail stores to 

30,00045,000 square feet. 

Part 12. In Chapter 7, page 88 amend the Policy EC-5 to read as follows: 

Policy EC-5 It is the Policy of the City to promote the development of the industrial park 

area, with non-polluting light industries having a low energy demand. 

Section 2.  The April 1, 2013 Official Zoning Map, attached as Exhibit B and made a part hereof, is 

herby adopted. 

Section 3.  Stayton Municipal Code Title 17, is hereby amended and restated as follows: 

Additions are underlined, Deletions are crossed out 

Part 1.  Amend Section 17.12.210.5 to indicate that the zoning district 

shall be assigned when territory is annexed into the City in 

accordance with the comprehensive plan designation and the 

proposed use of the territory being annexed. 

5. ZONING OF ANNEXED TERRITORY.  All lands that are annexed to the City shall be zoned 

in conformance accordance with the designation of the property in the Comprehensive Plan.  

The specific zone assigned to the land being annexed shall be determined by the City Council 

in accordance with the proposed uses of the land and the needs identified by the buildable lands 

analysis in the Comprehensive Plan.  This requirement does not prohibit an application to 

amend the Comprehensive Plan and Zoning MapsMap concurrent with the application for 

annexation. 

Part 2.  Add Section 17.12.220.4.b.20) to add a submission requirement for 

a geotechnical study when development activity is proposed on 

sites with slopes of 20% or steeper. 



 

Ordinance 949, Adopting 2012 Comprehensive Plan, Official Zoning Map, and Title 17 Amendments Page 5 

20)  When any development activity is proposed on a location a slope of 20% or steeper, a 

geotechnical study, prepared by a licensed geologist or registered engineer with experience in 

geotechnics, determining the suitability of the site for construction considering the possibility 

of increased erosion potential, slope stability, slippage and other concerns. 

Part 3.  Add Section 17.12.220.5.n to add an approval criterion for Site 

Plan Review applications regarding impacts on fish habitats. 

n.  When any portion of an application is within 100 feet of North Santiam River or Mill Creek or 

within 25 feet of Salem Ditch, the proposed project will not have adverse impact on fish 

habitat. 

Part 4.  Amend Section 17.16.020.3 to refer to an updated Official Zoning 

Map. 

3. OFFICIAL ZONING MAP  

a. The zones and their boundaries as specified in this title are shown upon a map which is 

designated as the "Official Zoning Map" of the City and which is hereby adopted as part of 

this code. 

b. Such map shall constitute the official record of the zones within the City as of January 

1989April 1, 2013 and thereafter as the map may be modified in accordance with the 

provisions of this title. 

c. The official zoning map or its subsequent amendments shall be dated with the effective date 

of the ordinance which adopts the map or map amendments and signed by the City Recorder. 

Part 5.  Amend Section 17.20.200.2.a to increase the allowable area in a 

retail store. 

a. All retail stores are limited to 30,00045,000 square feet of gross floor area. 

Part 6.  Amend Section 17.20.200.2.b to increase the allowable area in a 

mall. 

b. Malls are limited to 80,000100,000 square feet of gross floor area with no retail store exceeding 

30,000 square feet. 

Part 7. Add Section 17.24.040.6.k to an approval criterion for 

subdivisions and partitions regarding impacts on fish habitat. 

k.  When any portion of subdivision or partition is within 100 feet of North Santiam River or Mill 

Creek or within 25 feet of Salem Ditch, the proposed project will not have adverse impact on 

fish habitat. 

Part 8. Amend Section 17.24.090.2 to require parcels of land containing 

significant wetlands to be developed as master planned 

developments. 

2. APPLICABILITY.  The Master Planned Development designation may be applied in any 

zoning district. An applicant may elect to develop a project as a Master Planned Development 

in compliance with the requirements of this Section.  However In addition, the City may shall 

require that the following types of development be processed using the provisions of this 

Section: 

a. Where a land division and associated development is to occur on a parcel or site containing 

wetland(s) identified in the City of Stayton Local Wetlands and Riparian Inventory or by 

Department of State Lands as being a significant wetland site(s) requiring protection. 



 

Ordinance 949, Adopting 2012 Comprehensive Plan, Official Zoning Map, and Title 17 Amendments Page 6 

b. Where the land division is to occur on slopes of 15% slope or greater. 

c. Where Comprehensive Plan policies require any development in the area to occur as a 

Master Planned Development. 

Part 9. Amend Section 17.24.100.2.g.2) regarding density bonuses in master 

planned developments. 

2) Residential density bonuses may be granted when one or more of the following criteria are met, 

up to a 50% increase in density. 

a) Where the percentage of open space increases. The bonus shall permit a 5% increase in the 

maximum dwelling density for each percentage point increase of open space above the 

minimum required in Section 17.24.100.3.d. 

b) When the decision authority determines that the architectural standards proposed for the 

development exceed the applicable design standards of Sections 17.20.190, 17.20.200 and 

subsection 2.b through quality, distinctive and innovative design, and use of architectural 

amenities, such as locating garages behind the primary building line of the house, side 

loaded garages, or alley-access garages, a density bonus of up to 1520% may be granted. 

c) Up to a 15% density increase may be granted by the decision authority if the development 

exceeds the standards of subsection 2.d.8. 

d) Up to a 15% density increase may be granted by the decision authority if open space 

amenities such as those identified in subsection 2.d.8 are open to the public. 

Section 4.  Effective Date.  This ordinance shall become effective 30 days after adoption by the 

Stayton City Council and the Mayor’s signing. 

Section 5.  Notification to State.  A copy of this Ordinance shall be furnished to the State of Oregon, 

Department of Land Conservation and Development forthwith. 

ADOPTED BY THE STAYTON CITY COUNCIL this 18th day of March, 2013.  

 CITY OF STAYTON 

Signed: ____________, 2013 BY: _______________________________ 

 A. Scott Vigil, Mayor 

Signed: ____________, 2013 ATTEST: _______________________________ 

 Don Eubank, City Administrator 

 APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

 _______________________________ 

 David A. Rhoten, City Attorney 



 

Exhibit B, Ordinance 949 
 



Land Use File 06-06/12 

NROD Amendments to Comprehensive Plan and Title 17 

City Council Staff Report 

Page 1 of 2 

 

City of Stayton 
 

 

Planning and Development Department 
 

Mailing address:  362 N. Third Avenue·  Stayton, OR 97383 

Office location: 311 N. Third Avenue 

Phone:  (503) 769-2998  ·  FAX: (503) 767-2134 

Email:  dfleishman@ci.stayton.or.us 

www.staytonoregon.gov 

 

M E M O R A N D U M 

 

 TO: Mayor Scott Vigil and City Council Members 

 FROM: Dan Fleishman, Planning and Development Director 

 DATE: March 18, 2013 

 SUBJECT: Comprehensive Plan and Land Use Code Amendments, Enactment of Ordinance 

953 

 120 DAYS ENDS:  not applicable 

 

 

ISSUE 

The issue before the City Council is the enactment of Ordinance 953 to amend the Stayton 

Comprehensive Plan, the Official Zoning Map, and legislative text amendments to the Land Use and 

Development Code relative to the Natural Resource Overlay District. 

BACKGROUND 

The City Council held a public hearing on the Comprehensive Plan Update, Zoning Map and text 

amendments to the Land Use and Development Code on October 15.  At the hearing there was 

testimony from the Santiam Water Control District (SWCD) relative to the proposed changes in the 

Natural Resources Overlay District (NROD).  At the City Council’s February 19 meeting, the Council 

directed the changes to the Natural Resources Overlay District be removed from Ordinance 949 and 

brought forward in a separate ordinance for consideration.   

Changes to the Natural Resources Overlay District are presented to the City Council in Ordinance 953 

and were reviewed by the City Council on March 4.  The March 4 staff report contained extensive 

analysis. On March 4 consideration of Ordinance 953 was deferred. 

On March 13, Santiam Water Control District submitted additional written testimony, which is 

included with this staff report.  Ordinance 953 needs to be revised to respond to the SWCD March 13 

letter and attachments.  Due to the short time frame between the submission of the testimony by 

SWCD and the deadline for preparation of the staff report and Council packet, that revision could not 

be completed in a timely manner. 



Land Use File 06-06/12 

NROD Amendments to Comprehensive Plan and Title 17 

City Council Staff Report 

Page 2 of 2 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

Staff recommends consideration of Ordinance 953 be postponed until April 1, to allow time for the 

Ordinance to be revised. 

Staff will have a visual presentation at the meeting to allow the City Council to gain a better 

understanding of the current conditions in NROD. 

OPTIONS AND MOTIONS 

The City Council has the following options from which to choose.  Staff recommends the first option. 

1. Postpone consideration of the Ordinance until April 1, 2013. 

I move the City Council table consideration of Ordinance 953 until April 1, 2013. 

2. Make no changes to the Comprehensive Plan, Official Zoning Map or Title 17 as adopted and 

amended by Ordinance 949. 

I move the City Council leave the Comprehensive Plan, Official Zoning Map and narrative 

description of the Natural Resources Overlay District unchanged. 

 

































 
 
 

CITY OF STAYTON 
  

M E M O R A N D U M 
    

TO:   Mayor Scott Vigil and the Stayton City Council 
   City Administrator Don Eubank 
 
THRU:  David W. Kinney, Public Works Director 
 
FROM:  Jennifer Russell, Public Works Administrative Assistant 
 
DATE:  March 18, 2013 
 
SUBJECT:  Resolution No. 896, a Resolution to Apply for an Oregon 

Parks and Recreation Department Local Government 
Grant for Improvements to Pioneer Park 

  
 
ISSUE 
 
The issue before the City Council is whether or not to approve Resolution No. 896 authorizing 
the City apply for an Oregon Parks and Recreation Department (OPRD) Local Government 
Grant to rehabilitate Pioneer Park and to submit additional funding requests to private 
foundations, local corporations, and civic groups in order to provide a broad-based local match 
for the Local Government Grant. 
 
ENCLOSURES: 
 
 1. Resolution 896 
 2. Pioneer Park Master Plan – November 2011 Plan 
 3. West Entry Refinement Drawing – February 2013.   
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends the City Council approve Resolution No. 896. 
 

 
February 19, 2013 Memo to City Council 
OPRD Local Government Grant – Pioneer Park in Stayton Page 1 of 4  



 
March 4, 2013 Memo to City Council 
OPRD Local Government Grant – Pioneer Park in Stayton Page 2 of 4  

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
Parks & Recreation Master Plan (2004):   The Stayton Parks and Recreation Master Plan 
(MIG - Moore, Iacofano Goltsman, Inc. 2004) was adopted by the City in 2004 and is adopted as 
a capital facilities plan for the Stayton Comprehensive Plan.   The 2004 plan includes a series of 
recommendations for upgrading Pioneer Park, but does not include a conceptual refinement plan.   
 
The Master Plan recommends a number of rehabilitation projects to improve the park: 
 

• Add BBQ sites to picnic shelter 
• Smooth and regrade turf areas 
• Add unpaved pathways 
• Additional shelter building (utilities) 
• Conduct age and health analysis of trees 
• Begin tree replacement program 

• Reconstruct basketball slab 
• Repair steps to old swimming platform 
• Build footpath along south boundary 
• Rehab / add Picnic tables 
• Complete perimeter landscaping on the 7th 

Avenue frontage of the Neitling Tract 
 
Pioneer Park Master Plan Update (2011-2012): 
 
In 2011, the City retained landscape architect Brian Bainnson, Quatrefoil, Inc. to prepare a more 
detailed conceptual plan to guide future development of Pioneer Park.  The Parks Board worked 
with Mr. Bainnson and developed 3 conceptual drawings.  The Parks Board held several “open 
houses” in 2011 and took the plan to various events to solicit public comment.   A final DRAFT 
was prepared in November 2011 and the City solicited additional public comments in December 
2011/January 2012.   In February 2012, the Parks Board approved the plan and approved a 
prioritized list of improvements.  They reaffirmed their priorities in February 2013. 
 
The Parks Board recommends the west entry design be modified from the circular entry shown 
on the November 2011 master plan to a more U-shaped driveway, as shown on the February 
2013 refinement drawing.  This will improve circulation, create a drop-off area and allow Park 
Road to remain open until it is closed at a later date when Phase 2 improvements are constructed. 
 
On February 25, 2013, the Stayton Planning Commission reviewed the conceptual plan, found it 
to generally comply with the City’s land use requirements and endorsed the submittal of the 
grant applications.  If funding is secured, the City will need to submit a detailed development 
plan to the Planning Commission for approval. 
 
Funding & OPRD Local Government Grant Application 
 
In April 2013, the City plans to apply for a $250,000 +/- local government grant from the Oregon 
Parks and Recreation Department.  The application process includes several requirements 
including: 
 
 1. Compliance with the City’s Parks and Recreation Master Plan. 
 2. Conceptual Plan for the Project 
 3. Proposed Project Budget 
 4. Proposed Funding Sources 



 
February 22, 2011 Memo to City Council 
OPRD Local Government Grant – Pioneer Park in Stayton Page 3 of 4  

 5. Status of compliance with local land use regulations 
 6. Property ownership / lease information 
 
If OPRD grants are approved, the City anticipates PHASE 1 will be a $500,000+/- rehabilitation 
of the existing park.  PHASE 1 Improvements including the following elements: 
 
 1. Restrooms:  replace the existing restroom with a new larger restroom 

2. Create a new west entry and drop-off area @ 7th Avenue and E. Marion St. 
3. Develop an event plaza 
4. Add Picnic Shelters  
5. Add Site Amenities – ADA walkways, lighting, tables, benches, trash receptacles 
6. Install associated utilities:  storm drainage, water, sewer, electrical, etc.   

 
The west entry design was modified in February 2013 to improve circulation from E. Marion 
Street and enhance the drop-off area.  This is shown in the attached refinement drawing. 
 
Future phases will include: 
 7. Closure of Park Road. 
 8. Addition of an east side parking area. 
 9. Detention/Retention basin at the east end of the park 
 10. Expansion of the west parking area. 
 11. Additional picnic shelter and site amenities. 
 12. Pedestrian bridge connection to the Mill Crossing development 
 13. Pathway improvements 
 
OPRD requires a 40% local match.  The match can come from donors, volunteers, civic groups, 
contractors and the City budget.  The voter approved 2012 Local Option Levy includes up to 
$60,000 for Pioneer Park improvements.  The City also has $25,000 to $50,000 in Parks SDC 
funds which can be contributed to the project.  These amounts, coupled with in-kind staff 
contributions, foundation grants and private donations will provide the “local match” for the 
project.   The resolution commits the City to providing the required match from these various 
sources.  
   
In order for the City to submit the application, the OPRD Local Government Grant application 
process requires the governing body to approve a Resolution authorizing the Grant application. 
 
 
PARKS BOARD RECOMMENDATION: 
 
The Parks Board unanimously recommends the City apply for a grant to improve Pioneer Park.   
 
OPTION(S) 
 

1. The City Council may approve Resolution No. 896. 
 
2. The City Council may deny Resolution No. 896. 



 
March 4, 2013 Memo to City Council 
OPRD Local Government Grant – Pioneer Park in Stayton Page 4 of 4  

 
MOTION(S) 
 

1. Move to approve Resolution No. 896.   
 

Adoption will authorize the City Administrator to apply for and sign the Oregon 
Parks and Recreation Local Government Grant application for improvements to 
Pioneer Park, other grant applications and funding requests to private foundations, 
local corporations and civic groups in order to provide a broad-based local match for 
the OPRD Local Government Grant. 

 
2. Move to deny Resolution No. 896. 

 
3. Move to modify staff’s recommendation.   



 RESOLUTION NO. 896 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY OF STAYTON TO APPLY FOR A LOCAL 
GOVERNMENT GRANT FROM THE OREGON PARKS AND RECREATION 

DEPARTMENT FOR IMPROVEMENTS TO PIONEER PARK. 
  
 WHEREAS, the Oregon Parks and Recreation Department (OPRD) is accepting applications for the 
Local Government Grant Program; 
 
 WHEREAS, the Stayton Park and Recreation Master Plan adopted in March 2004, identifies 
improvements to Pioneer Park; 
 

WHEREAS, the Stayton Park and Recreation Board has reviewed park facility needs for Pioneer Park, 
has developed a conceptual plan to rehabilitate the park,  has solicited comments from area residents and park 
users and has recommended priority improvements to be included in a phased improvement and rehabilitation of 
Pioneer Park;  

 
WHEREAS, the Stayton Park and Recreation Board recommends the City apply for a Local Government 

grant from the OPRD and apply for grants from private foundations, local corporations and civic groups to 
provide local matching funds if a state parks grant is awarded to construct Pioneer Park improvements;  

 
WHEREAS, the OPRD grant program requires a 40 percent match from the City ; 
 
WHEREAS, the CITY OF STAYTON will provide local matching funds, donated and in-kind services to 

fulfill its share of obligation related to this grant application should the grant funds be awarded. 
 
WHEREAS, the CITY OF STAYTON will provide adequate funding for on-going operations and 

maintenance of this park and recreation facility should the grant funds be awarded. 
 
WHEREAS, one of the requirements of the OPRD grant application process is that the application must 

include a resolution from the governing body authorizing the grant application. 
 

 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that  
 
Section 1. The City of Stayton, through its City Administrator, shall apply for a Local Government Grant from the 
Oregon Parks and Recreation Department for a grant to pay for rehabilitation of facilities and improvements in 
Pioneer Park as identified in the Park and Recreation Master Plan. 
 
Section 2. The City of Stayton, through its City Administrator, may submit additional grant applications and 
funding requests to private foundations, local corporations and civic groups in order to provide a broad-based 
local match for the Local Government Grant.  
 
Section 3. This Resolution shall become effective upon adoption by the Stayton City Council. 
 
ADOPTED BY THE STAYTON CITY COUNCIL this 18th day of March, 2013 
 
      CITY OF STAYTON 
 
Date:_______________, 2013   By:                                                                      

Scott Vigil, Mayor 
 
Date:                               , 2013   Attest:                                                                 

Don Eubank, City Administrator 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
____________________________ 
David A. Rhoten, City Attorney 

 











City of Stayton 
Finance Department 

Public Works Department  
Planning and Development Department 

www.staytonoregon.gov 
 

 
M E M O R A N D U M 

 
 TO: Mayor Scott Vigil and City Council Members 

 FROM: Christine Shaffer, Finance Director 
  David Kinney, Public Works Director 
 
 DATE: March 18, 2013 

 SUBJECT: Extension of the Transportation Maintenance Fee 
 

 

ISSUE 

The issue before the City Council is whether or not the City should extend the Transportation 
Maintenance Fee (TMF) for 5-years to June 30, 2018.  The current fee will end June 30, 2013 
unless extended by the City Council. 

 

ENCLOSURES: 
1. Ordinance 954, Continuation of Transportation Maintenance Fee (5-years to 2018) 
2. Resolution 864, page 2 – Transportation Maintenance Fee Rates 

 

BACKGROUND 

Chapter 3.30 “Transportation Maintenance Program” and the monthly Transportation Maintenance 
Fee (TMF) is scheduled to end on June 30, 2013. 

The City Council adopted the fee in December 2010 to generate $80,000 per year to help pay for an 
on-going street, sidewalk and transportation maintenance activities.  At the time several councilors 
expressed concern that the fee, coupled with other gas tax, surface transportation funds would not 
make a difference in the City’s maintenance efforts.   A sunset clause was added to the ordinance to 
provide a 3-year trial period and require a future council to consider the effectiveness of the 
program. 

 

City Council Staff Report, Street Maintenance Fee Page 1 of 4 
March 2013 
 



USE OF TRANSPORTATION MAINTENANCE FEE $$ SINCE 2011 

The public works department believes the Transportation Maintenance Fee coupled with an increase 
in gas tax revenues has enabled the City to make significant improvements since 2010.    

Major Projects: 

1. 10th Avenue (E. Santiam to Fern Ridge Rd.)  $ 1.7 million project 

The City completed the reconstruction of 10th Avenue including street, water and storm 
drainage improvements in 2012.   The street was narrow, unsafe and had poor drainage 
systems.  All were rebuilt.  The City leveraged $350,000 from Santiam Hospital, TMF, gas 
taxes and surface transportation program (STP) funds to obtain an $883,500 Immediate 
Opportunity Grant from ODOT.   The City would not have been able to complete the full 
project without the “local” contribution.  

2. 6th Avenue Overlay and Drainage (E. Santiam to Hollister) $ 120,000 +/- project 

In 2012 the City fixed drainage and installed an AC pavement overlay on this 3-block 
section of 6th Avenue in front of St. Mary Elementary School.  The street was pock marked 
with a failed skin patch AC overlay from the 1980’s.  This was paid for with TMF, gas tax 
and one-year STP funds. 

3. High Street (1st to 2nd)       $ 50,000 AC Overlay 

The City used water funds and TMF/gas tax funds to install a new water line and an AC 
pavement overlay on this block next to the US Post Office.  This was an old oil mat street 
with many areas of failed pavement and potholes.   

4. Annual Maintenance Activities: 

The Public Works staff has been able to add crack sealing, pavement patching, sidewalk 
maintenance and gravel shoulder maintenance to the annual maintenance program: 

Annual Street Maintenance Activity 
Annual 
Cost  Description 

Routine Annual Maintenance      50,000 Routine activities including pot hole patching, sign 
maintenance, striping, etc. 

Gravel Road Maintenance       10,000 Annual grading and dust control of gravel streets  

Shoulder Maintenance (Dig out & 1st Yr Prep)       5,000 New program for 2013 

Crack Seal / Slurry Seal      25,000 50,000 lineal feet of crack sealing annually in 2011 & 2012. 

Pavement Patching (Cut outs & Repairs)      20,000 Selected cut out & pavement repairs of failed pavement 
sections.  Example: Locust St. west of Gardner Avenue. 

Sidewalk Maintenance Program 35,000 Start in 2013:  Annual repairs and ADA ramps 

Annual Maintenance Total    145,000 Will vary annually from $130,000 to $145,000.  

  

City Council Staff Report, Street Maintenance Fee Page 2 of 4 
March 2013 
 



Shoulder maintenance activities were completed on W. Virginia, 4th Avenue and E. Hollister 
(1st-3rd).   Sidewalk maintenance and repairs in the downtown area will be spread over two 
fiscal years because of the amount of repairs that need to be made in the area.   Downtown 
sidewalk repairs will be done from May to July 2013.  

 

AMOUNT OF TRANSPORTATION MAINTENANCE FEE 

The TMF is collected as part of the City’s general utility bill that also includes sewer and water 
service. 

1. Residential Rates: 

For residential customers the fee is based on the number of dwelling units served by the account. 

   
Residential Rates 

Rate Classification  Monthly Charge 

Single family homes  $   2.00 

Apartments (per unit)  1.12 

Mobile Home Parks (per unit)  1.04 

Assisted Living (per unit)   0.50 

 

2. Non-Residential Rates: 

For nonresidential customers the fee is roughly based on the amount of traffic the non-residential 
use may typically generate.  Most small retail/business uses are $5.00 per month.  Larger public, 
commercial or industrial uses are $10 and $20 per month.   
 

Non‐Residential Rates 

Rate Classification  Monthly Charge 

Classes 1‐2  (0 to 30 vehicle trips/day)  $   5.00 

Classes 3‐6  (31 to 140 vehicle trips/day)  10.00 

Classes 7‐11  (> 140 vehicle trips/day)   20.00 

 

During the first 3 years of the TMF, we have made a few adjustments to fees when the customer has 
explained the actual use of the building and we can more accurately gauge the traffic generated by 
the uses in the building.   

 
 

City Council Staff Report, Street Maintenance Fee Page 3 of 4 
March 2013 
 



NEXT STEPS 
 

o Discuss Extension of Transportation Maintenance Fee 

o Decision to Sunset or Extend the Transportation Maintenance Fee  

 

OPTIONS 

The Council may: 

a. Take no action.  This will end the TMF on June 30, 2013.    

If the TMF is ended, the Public Works staff will scale back annual street maintenance, 
scale back the sidewalk repair program to only respond to complaints and reduce the 
overlays to a 1 or 2 blocks every 2+ years. 

b. Amend Chapter 3.30 to extend the TMF for 5-years. 

c. Amend Chapter 3.30 to permanently implement the TMF with no sunset provision. 

If TMF is extended for 5 years or permanently, the Public Works staff will continue the 
current level of street maintenance work.  We will also keep our eye out for potential 
grant opportunities where the City can leverage the City’s gas tax/TMF/STP funds.  

 
MOTIONS: 
 

1. Sunset the Transportation Maintenance Fee:    No motion is needed. 
 

2. 5–Year Extension:  Offer a motion to approve Ordinance No. 954 to amend 
Chapter 3.30 to extend the Transportation Maintenance Fee for five (5) 
years.  

 
3. Permanent Extension:   Offer a motion to direct the City Administrator to 

modify the proposed ordinance to eliminate the Sunset Provision in Chapter 
3.30.120. 

 

City Council Staff Report, Street Maintenance Fee Page 4 of 4 
March 2013 
 



 
Page 1 – Ordinance No. 954   In re: Continuation of the Transportation Maintenance Program -  SMC Chapter 3.30 

ORDINANCE NO.  954 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE STAYTON MUNICIPAL CODE 
CHAPTER 3.30 TO CONTINUE A TRANSPORTATION MAINTENANCE 
PROGRAM FOR THE CITY OF STAYTON. 

 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council finds that the streets, sidewalks and transportation system are in 
need of annual maintenance and repair; and  
 
 WHEREAS, in 2010 the City Council concluded that in order to generate funds to perform 
required maintenance on the City’s streets, sidewalks and transportation system, it was  appropriate for 
the City to adopt a transportation maintenance fee on developed properties inside the City of Stayton; 
and  
 
 WHEREAS, in December 2010 the City Council adopted Chapter 3.30 authorizing a 
Transportation Maintenance Fee and authorized the collection of a Transportation Maintenance Fee for 
a 3-year period; and  
 

WHEREAS, Stayton Municipal Code Chapter 3.30 will terminate on June 30, 2013 in 
accordance with the sunset provision of the code; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council finds that the Transportation Maintenance Fee has generated 
approximately $84,000 per year since 2011 for maintenance of the City’s streets and sidewalks; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City has been able to use the Transportation Maintenance Fee revenues to 
leverage gas tax revenues, grants and surface transportation program funds from the Oregon 
Department of Transportation to complete the following street reconstruction projects since 2011:   (1) 
Tenth Avenue; (2) 6th Street Overlay and (3) High Street Overlay and the City has initiated an annual 
sidewalk repair program; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council concludes it will not be able to continue to make street, sidewalk 
and transportation system improvements without the revenue generated from the Transportation 
Maintenance Fee; and  
 

WHEREAS, the City Council believes the continuation of the Transportation Maintenance Fee 
will make a positive difference to the City’s transportation system and benefit the citizens of Stayton; 
and  

 
WHEREAS, the City Council believes it is appropriate for the City Council to review the 

effectiveness of the Transportation Maintenance Fee and determine whether or not it is appropriate to 
reauthorize the Transportation Maintenance Fee on a regular five-year interval. 
  
  

NOW, THEREFORE, the Stayton City Council does ordain as follows: 



 
Page 2 – Ordinance No. 954   In re: Continuation of the Transportation Maintenance Program -  SMC Chapter 3.30 

 
 SECTION 1. Section 3.30.120 of Chapter 3.30 of the Stayton Municipal Code relating to a 
Transportation System Maintenance Program is hereby amended to read: 
    
  3.30.120  REVIEW AND SUNSET PROVISION. 

The  City  Council will  review  the  effectiveness  of  the  Transportation Maintenance  Program 
every five years.  The provisions of Chapter 3.30 are hereby repealed effective June 30, 2018, 
unless extended by the City Council.  

 
 SECTION 2. Non-Emergency Ordinance.  This ordinance is a non-emergency ordinance and 
will take effect 30 days after enactment of the City Council and approval by the Mayor.   
  
 
ADOPTED BY THE STAYTON CITY COUNCIL this ______ day of ____________, 2013. 
 
 

CITY OF STAYTON 
 
Signed:       By:_______________________________________ 
  A. Scott Vigil, Mayor 
 
 
 
  ATTEST      
 
Signed:    By:         
   Don Eubank, City Administrator 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
____________________________ 
David A. Rhoten, City Attorney 



M E M O R A N D U M 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
TO:  Mayor Scott Vigil and the Stayton City Council 
 
FROM: Christine Shaffer, Finance Director 
 
DATE: March 18, 2013   
 
SUBJECT: Monthly Finance Department Report   
      
 
Attached are the month-end reports for the major operating funds of the City.  I have 
identified the following funds as the major operating funds:  General Fund, Public Works 
Administration Fund, Library Fund, Water Fund, Sewer Fund, Street Fund and Swimming 
Pool Fund.  If you have any questions, please let me know. 
 
Departmental activity: 
 
Utility Billing:             February 2013                     January 2013 
 Number of Bills sent out      2,625                                 2,619 
 Delinquent Notices sent out        510                              472 
 Courtesy Delinquent Notices sent to Landlords      235                  228 
           Notified of Impending Shut off & Penalty                120                                    112 

Customers with Interrupted Services Non-Payment    16          21 
           Services still Disconnected                                            0                                        0 
 
Accounts Payable: 
 Number of Checks Issued                    155        122 
 Total Amount of Checks                $554,171.07               $195,679.44 
 
Accounts Receivable: 
 Number of Invoices Sent Out             2                             13
 Total Amount of Invoices          $1,200.00       $7,975.49 
  
 
  
 
  



CITY OF STAYTON
FUND SUMMARY

FOR THE 8 MONTHS ENDING FEBRUARY 28, 2013

GENERAL FUND

YTD ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE PCNT

FOR CITY COUNCIL PRESENTATION ONLY 67 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED 03/08/2013     04:36PM       PAGE: 1

REVENUE

PROPERTY TAXES 1,566,762.67 1,708,922.00 142,159.33 91.7
CHARGES FOR SERVICES 3,830.73 7,200.00 3,369.27 53.2
GRANTS & CONTRIBUTIONS 787.00 1,500.00 713.00 52.5
FRANCHISE FEES 452,294.79 626,000.00 173,705.21 72.3
LICENSES, PERMITS & FEES 25,445.06 16,000.00 (                9,445.06) 159.0
FINES & FORFEITURES 27,823.76 20,500.00 (                7,323.76) 135.7
INTERGOVERNMENTAL 126,153.21 163,200.00 37,046.79 77.3
INTEREST (                3,382.63) 1,000.00 4,382.63 (338.3)
MISCELLANEOUS/TRANSFERS 203,451.36 385,425.00 181,973.64 52.8

2,403,165.95 2,929,747.00 526,581.05 82.0

EXPENDITURES

NON-DEPARTMENTAL 181,561.61 411,000.00 229,438.39 44.2
ADMINISTRATION 287,999.39 461,973.00 173,973.61 62.3
POLICE 1,164,883.73 1,866,232.00 701,348.27 62.4
PLANNING 71,478.39 138,224.00 66,745.61 51.7
COMMUNITY CENTER 31,782.19 56,798.00 25,015.81 56.0
PARKS 88,134.97 141,576.00 53,441.03 62.3
STREET LIGHTING 61,134.99 103,915.00 42,780.01 58.8

1,886,975.27 3,179,718.00 1,292,742.73 59.3



CITY OF STAYTON
FUND SUMMARY

FOR THE 8 MONTHS ENDING FEBRUARY 28, 2013

PUBLIC WORKS ADMINISTRATION

YTD ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE PCNT

FOR CITY COUNCIL PRESENTATION ONLY 67 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED 03/08/2013     04:36PM       PAGE: 2

REVENUE

INTEREST 111.29 100.00 (                     11.29) 111.3
MISCELLANEOUS/TRANSFERS 206,537.65 415,000.00 208,462.35 49.8

206,648.94 415,100.00 208,451.06 49.8

EXPENDITURES

DEPARTMENT 80 249,567.44 438,423.00 188,855.56 56.9

249,567.44 438,423.00 188,855.56 56.9



CITY OF STAYTON
FUND SUMMARY

FOR THE 8 MONTHS ENDING FEBRUARY 28, 2013

LIBRARY FUND

YTD ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE PCNT

FOR CITY COUNCIL PRESENTATION ONLY 67 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED 03/08/2013     04:36PM       PAGE: 3

REVENUE

PROPERTY TAXES 127,113.73 134,700.00 7,586.27 94.4
CHARGES FOR SERVICES 36,999.00 80,450.00 43,451.00 46.0
GRANTS & CONTRIBUTIONS 150.00 30,000.00 29,850.00 .5
LICENSES, PERMITS & FEES 9,035.75 12,300.00 3,264.25 73.5
FINES & FORFEITURES 10,267.78 15,000.00 4,732.22 68.5
INTERGOVERNMENTAL 1,118.00 1,100.00 (                     18.00) 101.6
INTEREST 264.12 200.00 (                     64.12) 132.1
MISCELLANEOUS/TRANSFERS 64,750.00 131,100.00 66,350.00 49.4

249,698.38 404,850.00 155,151.62 61.7

EXPENDITURES

DEPARTMENT 80 281,178.65 444,912.00 163,733.35 63.2

281,178.65 444,912.00 163,733.35 63.2



CITY OF STAYTON
FUND SUMMARY

FOR THE 8 MONTHS ENDING FEBRUARY 28, 2013

WATER ENTERPRISE FUND

YTD ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE PCNT

FOR CITY COUNCIL PRESENTATION ONLY 67 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED 03/08/2013     04:36PM       PAGE: 4

REVENUE

CHARGES FOR SERVICES 1,283,297.23 1,745,000.00 461,702.77 73.5
LICENSES, PERMITS & FEES 22,147.50 29,000.00 6,852.50 76.4
INTEREST 3,555.06 3,500.00 (                     55.06) 101.6
MISCELLANEOUS/TRANSFERS 387.72 11,000.00 10,612.28 3.5

1,309,387.51 1,788,500.00 479,112.49 73.2

EXPENDITURES

DEPARTMENT 86 1,652,832.98 2,324,761.00 671,928.02 71.1

1,652,832.98 2,324,761.00 671,928.02 71.1



CITY OF STAYTON
FUND SUMMARY

FOR THE 8 MONTHS ENDING FEBRUARY 28, 2013

SEWER ENTERPRISE FUND

YTD ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE PCNT

FOR CITY COUNCIL PRESENTATION ONLY 67 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED 03/08/2013     04:36PM       PAGE: 5

REVENUE

CHARGES FOR SERVICES 1,820,186.36 2,626,680.00 806,493.64 69.3
INTEREST 8,803.30 9,000.00 196.70 97.8
MISCELLANEOUS/TRANSFERS 47,445.08 2,500.00 (              44,945.08) 1897.8

1,876,434.74 2,638,180.00 761,745.26 71.1

EXPENDITURES

DEPARTMENT 86 1,356,913.46 3,405,469.00 2,048,555.54 39.9

1,356,913.46 3,405,469.00 2,048,555.54 39.9



CITY OF STAYTON
FUND SUMMARY

FOR THE 8 MONTHS ENDING FEBRUARY 28, 2013

STREET FUND

YTD ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE PCNT

FOR CITY COUNCIL PRESENTATION ONLY 67 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED 03/08/2013     04:36PM       PAGE: 6

REVENUE

CHARGES FOR SERVICES 57,240.73 84,000.00 26,759.27 68.1
LICENSES, PERMITS & FEES 3.61 .00 (                       3.61) .0
INTERGOVERNMENTAL 635,368.48 861,119.00 225,750.52 73.8
INTEREST 305.44 250.00 (                     55.44) 122.2
MISCELLANEOUS/TRANSFERS 13.65 250.00 236.35 5.5

692,931.91 945,619.00 252,687.09 73.3

EXPENDITURES

DEPARTMENT 80 537,846.23 977,462.00 439,615.77 55.0

537,846.23 977,462.00 439,615.77 55.0



CITY OF STAYTON
FUND SUMMARY

FOR THE 8 MONTHS ENDING FEBRUARY 28, 2013

SWIMMING POOL FUND

YTD ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE PCNT

FOR CITY COUNCIL PRESENTATION ONLY 67 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED 03/08/2013     04:36PM       PAGE: 7

REVENUE

PROPERTY TAXES 145,644.39 153,400.00 7,755.61 94.9
CHARGES FOR SERVICES 66,312.36 105,000.00 38,687.64 63.2
GRANTS & CONTRIBUTIONS 16.00 20,000.00 19,984.00 .1
INTEREST 213.63 300.00 86.37 71.2
MISCELLANEOUS/TRANSFERS 38,190.56 79,000.00 40,809.44 48.3

250,376.94 357,700.00 107,323.06 70.0

EXPENDITURES

DEPARTMENT 86 233,288.65 408,958.00 175,669.35 57.0

233,288.65 408,958.00 175,669.35 57.0



 

 
 
M E M O R A N D U M  
 

TO:                Mayor Vigil and the Stayton City Council 
 
FROM:            Rich Sebens, Chief of Police 
 
SUBJECT:      Monthly Crime Rate Comparison Statistical Sheets 
   
DATE:  March 18, 2013 
 
Below you will see the stats for the Police Department for the month of February.   
 
 Feb. 

2013 
Year to Date 

2013 
Feb. 
2012 

Year to Date 
2012 

     
Police Activity 863 1600 862 1652 
     
Investigated Incidents 294 642 340 614 
     
Citations/Warning 379 601 315 647 
     
Traffic Accidents 6 15 11 24 
     
Arrests 40 103 52 78 
     
Reserve Volunteer Hours 447.75 773 278 564.4 
     
Citizen Volunteer Hours 75 138.5 N/A N/A 
     
Peer Court Referrals: 0 3 5 10 
        
        
 







   
 

CITY OF STAYTON 
 

MONTHLY OPERATING REPORT 
 
 
 
 

TO:       Mayor A. Scott Vigil and the Stayton City Council  
 
FROM:  Jennifer Russell, Administrative Assistant 
 
THRU:  Dave Kinney, Public Works Director 
       
DATE:  March 18, 2013 
 
SUBJECT:   February Monthly Operating Report 
 
 
KEY ACTIVITIES STATUS 
 
• WWTP Facility Effluent flows: 45.47 million gallons were treated during February. The highest 

flow was 2.42 million gallons on February 1st, and the lowest flow was 1.16 
million gallons on February 17th. The average flow was 1.62 million gallons. 
Total rainfall for February was 2.06 inches. 18.71 tons of dewatered biosolids 
were produced. 

 
• WTP Highest production day was 2,243,000 on the February 27th. 
 
• Water System City crews installed 2 new meters. Installed 1 new radio. Repaired a water leak 

on Kent Ave. Replaced 2 water poly services on Kent Ave. Potholed utilities on 
E Jefferson for water project. Installed about 1276 feet of 8” ductile pipe for 
water line project on E Jefferson from 10th Ave to 15th Ave. 

 
• Streets  Swept 121 curb miles and removed approximately 24 cubic yards of material. 
    
 Parks Court ordered Community Service: 56 hours 

 
• Building Permits   

            Permit Type Issued SDC’s Paid
New Single Family Dwelling 2 $22,130.00 
Residential Building Addition/Alteration/Other 0 0 
Commercial Building Addition/Alteration/Other 1 0 
Electrical 0 0 
Mechanical  0 0 
Plumbing 1 0 

TOTAL 4 $22,130.00 
One (1) Residential SDC = $11,065 

 
Public Works Monthly Operating Report  Page 1 of 1 
March 18, 2013 



 
 
 

CITY OF STAYTON 
  

M E M O R A N D U M 
    

TO:  Mayor A. Scott Vigil and City Councilors 
 
THRU: City Administrator Don Eubank 
 
FROM: David W. Kinney, Public Works Director 
 
DATE: March 18, 2013 
 
SUBJECT: Public Works Update – Informational Items 
  
 
Here is a brief update on a few projects and issues the Public Works Department is currently 
working on: 
 
1. E. Jefferson St. Water Line (10th to 15th):  The new 8” water line has been installed and it 

has passed the required pressure and chlorination tests. The service lines from the main to the 
meter box are in the ground. We will change over homes to the new water line near the end 
of March. There will be some short time periods when individual homes will have their water 
service interrupted for up to an hour. 

 
2. Downtown Sidewalk Program:  Four property owners have completed work on their 

sidewalk repairs and others have picked up permits to do work themselves. Mike Brash and 
Rachel Wolf will be preparing a bid packet to solicit proposals from contractors to do the 
remaining work.   

 
3. Westown Sidewalks – Enforcement:   Two property owners in the Westown neighborhood 

have been given notices to repair hazardous sidewalks. They have indicated they are unable 
to complete the work and have asked the city to work with them to complete repairs. The 
total cost of work may be up to $1500 per property owner. Based on our conversations with 
the property owners, we expect the city may need to arrange payment agreements or impose 
liens on the properties. We will keep the finance staff and council informed on our progress. 

 
  

 

 
Public Works Update Memo  Page 1 of 1 
March 18, 2013   



   
 

CITY OF STAYTON 
 

MONTHLY OPERATING REPORT 
 
 
 
 

TO: Mayor Scott Vigil and the Stayton City Council  
 
FROM: Alissa Angelo, Deputy City Recorder 
 
THRU:  Don Eubank, City Administrator 
   
DATE: March 18, 2013 
 
SUBJECT: February Pool Monthly Operating Report 
 
SALES

 Feb 2013 
SALES 

2012-2013 
YTD 

Feb 2012 
SALES 

2011-2012 
YTD 

Swim Lessons $    1,937.00 $    9,412.25 $       826.50 $    8,194.05

Daily Receipts $    1,618.34  $  16,179.42 $    2,434.00 $  22,206.83

Pool Rentals $    1,082.50 $  10,557.50 $    1,641.00 $    7,484.00

Pool Vending $         49.60 $       983.91 $       196.70 $    1,518.70

Memberships $    4,365.50 $  30,163.19 $    2,303.00 $  20,004.64

Lifeguard Training $           0.00 $       445.00 $           0.00 $           0.00

Other $         0.00 $           5.00 $           0.00 $           0.00

TOTAL $  9,052.94 $67,746.27 $  7,401.20  $59,408.22
Target revenue above general fund and levy subsidies is $108,500.  YTD sales 
represent approximately 62% of that target. 

 
        

 
Pool Monthly Operating Report   
March 18, 2013 



 
 M E M O R A N D U M 
 
 
 

                                     

TO:  Mayor Scott Vigil and Stayton City Councilors  
 
FROM: Louise Meyers, Library Director 
 
DATE: March 18, 2013 
 
SUBJECT: Library Director’s Report, February Activities 
  
 
Updates: 
 
The Library Foundation’s planning for the Santiam Canyon Father Daughter Ball is going well, 
with a lot of sponsors and excited fathers and daughters. It will occur on April 13th at the 
Community Center.  
 
Free tax help begins in March. It will be every Thursday in March and April. This is a service 
that many people appreciate, and it is well attended.  
 
The computer classes are going well.  On March 1st, the topic will be on Digital Photography, 
and the next one on April 5th will be about creating documents. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



CHECKOUTS 13,918 11,223 10,448 12,667 11,707 9,573 13,050 10,935 86,063 93,521 9%

Non-resident cards             $1,046.00 $692.00 $307.00 $705.00 $1,647.00 $325.00 $655.00 $689.00 $7,914.00 $6,066.00 -23%

Fines: overdue books        $866.00 $1,011.00 $1,903.00 $1,129.00 $1,535.00 $696.20 $921.70 $714.57 $9,432.00 $8,776.47 -7%

Room fees                        $109.00 0 $526.25 $49.50 $538.25 $648.00 $566.00 $245.00 $784.00 $2,682.00 242%

Fees-cards and  lost books $776.00 $140.00 $299.00 $127.00 $171.00 $283.00 $84.20 $52.00 $1,690.00 $1,932.20 14%

Total $19,820.00 $19,456.67 -2%

REFERENCE QUESTIONS

Reference questions 559 528 461 543 561 376 506 415 3,594 3,949 10%

Telephone 302 346 290 327 292 246 328 286 2,376 2,417 2%

Total 5,970 6,366 7%

INTERNET USE 1,946 1,837 1,482 1,580 1,507 1,526 1,640 1,721 14,289 13,239 -7%

PROGRAM ATTENDANCE

Children/teens 827 224 199 341 252 183 356 398 3,110 2,780 -11%

Adults 350 79 100 185 134 101 193 216 2,481 1,358 -45%

Outreach 75 57 212 828 675 499 739 850 3,726 3,935 6%

Total 9,317 8,061 -13%

MEETING ROOM 
ATTENDANCE

1,217 341 617 1,126 532 284 865 908 6,917 5,890 -15%

PATRON VISITS 9,383 8,069 6,721 8,194 7,441 6,355 8,194 7,043 61,928 61,400 -1%

INCOME Received

2012 - 2013 Monthly Library Statistics 
March April

% 
Change

2011-12JuneMaySept. 2012-13 YTDJuly August Feb.Dec. Jan.Oct. Nov.


	02(1) - Mar 18 Staff Report ordinance 949.pdf
	02(2) - Last Further Revised Ordinance 949 for Adoption.pdf
	03(1) - Mar 18 Staff Report Ord 953.pdf
	03(2) - SWCD Testimony 031313.pdf
	04(4) - Pioneer Park Entry Plaza 2-25-2013.pdf
	05(2) - Transp Mtce Fee Ordinance 954.doc
	06(1) - Monthly Financial Report12 2013.doc
	06(2) - Council Financial Stmt Feb.pdf
	07(1) - 2013 031813 February Crime report 2013.doc
	07(2) - doc00495320130313110306.pdf
	08(1) - 03-2013.doc
	10(2) - 2012-13 MONTHLY STATISTICS corrected.xls



